### STATE BAR OF GEORGIA SECTION OF ANTITRUST

#### BY-LAWS

#### ARTICLE I

# Name and Purpose

Section 1: The name of this Section shall be the "Section of Antitrust".

Section 2: The purpose of this Section shall be to promote the objects of the State Bar of Georgia within the field of antitrust; to sponsor actively the continuing education of the members of the State Bar of Georgia in this field; to study, review or initiate proposed legislation or administrative policy for the improvement of the law and practice in this field and to make appropriate recommendations thereon to the State Bar of Georgia; all pursuant to Article XIV of the By-Laws of the State Bar of Georgia as they presently exist.

#### ARTICLE II

#### Membership and Dues

Section 1: Each member of this Section shall be a member in good standing of the State Bar of Georgia. Any member of the State Bar of Georgia, upon request and payment of annual Section dues of \$2.00 for the current year, shall be enrolled as a member of this Section. Thereafter, such dues shall be paid in advance each year at the time of payment of dues to the State Bar of Georgia. Members so enrolled and whose dues are so paid shall constitute the membership of this Section. Any member whose annual dues shall be more than six (6) months past due thereupon shall cease to be a member and shall be dropped from the rolls of the Section, subject to reinstatement at any time upon the payment of dues for the current year.

# ARTICLE III

# Officers

Section 1: The officers of the Section shall be a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman and a Secretary, all of whom shall be members of the Section in good standing.

Section 2: Each officer shall hold office for a term beginning at the close of the annual meeting of the Section at which he is elected and ending at the close of the next succeeding annual meeting of the Section and until his successor shall have been elected and qualified. If a vacancy shall arise in the office of Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall become Chairman for the unexpired term. If a vacancy shall arise in the office of Vice-Chairman or Secretary, the Chairman shall appoint a successor for the unexpired term. If a vacancy shall arise in the office of Chairman and there then also shall exist a vacancy in the office of Vice-Chairman, the President of the State Bar of Georgia shall appoint a successor Chairman for the unexpired term.

Section 3: The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Section.

Section 3: The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Section, shall appoint appropriate committees of the Section to serve during his term as Chairman, shall plan and supervise the program of the Section at its annual meeting, and perform all executive and administrative duties necessary or proper to the organization and functioning of the Section, including any duty as from time to time may be prescribed by the Section or by the State Bar of Georgia.

<u>Section 4:</u> The Vice-Chairman shall assist the Chairman and, in the absence or disability of the Chairman, shall perform the duties of the Chairman.

Section 5: The Secretary shall keep minutes of all meetings of the Section, maintain the permanent records, give notices of meetings, and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Chairman.

Section 6: Upon the organization of the Section, the President of the State Bar of Georgia shall appoint a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman, and a Secretary to serve until the close of the next annual meeting of the Association.

# ARTICLE IV

# Meetings of the Section

Section 1: An annual meeting of the Section shall be held each year at or about the time of each Annual Meeting of the State Bar of Georgia and in the immediate vicinity of the same place; the date, time and meeting room to be fixed by the Chairman.

Section 2: A Special Meeting of the Section may be called by the Chairman to be convened at such time and place and with such program and order of business as may be fixed by the Chairman.

Section 3: Ten (10) members of the Section present at any meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Section 4: All action of the Section shall be by a majority vote of the members of the Section present at any properly called meeting at which a quorum is present.

Section 5: At least ten (10) days written notice of the time and place of each meeting of the Section shall be given by mailing the same to each member of the Section on the rolls of the Section in the office of the State Bar of Georgia at the member's address as the same appears in said office. However, it shall not be required that any such notice be by a specifically separate mailing; the same may be included in other written or printed material which is being distributed by mail to all of the members of the State Bar of Georgia or to any part thereof which is inclusive of all of the members of the Section.

#### ARTICLE V

### Executive Committee

Section 1: The Executive Committee of the Section shall consist of the three officers of the Section and two other members of the Section appointed by the Chairman, whose term shall be coexistent with that of the Chairman.

Section 2: The Executive Committee shall have full authority to act for the Section in any way in which the Section itself would be authorized to act and any such action taken by the Executive Committee pursuant to this provision shall be reported to the members of the Section at the next Annual Meeting of the Section.

#### ARTICLE VI

#### Elections

Section 1: Prior to each annual meeting of the Section, the Chairman shall appoint not less than three (3) members of the Section to a Nominating

#### ARTICLE VIII

# Miscellaneous

<u>Section 1</u>: The Section shall from time to time conduct programs for the continuing education in the field of antitrust but shall co-ordinate its efforts in this regard with the other Sections of the State Bar of Georgia.

<u>Section 2</u>: This Section may from time to time sponsor, promote, study or review proposed legislation and report thereon to the State Bar of Georgia.

#### ARTICLE IX

### Effective Date and Amendment

Section 1: These By-Laws shall become effective upon approval by the Board of Governors of the State Bar of Georgia.

Section 2: These By-Laws may be amended by a majority vote of the members of the Section present at any properly called meeting at which a quorum is present and subsequent approval thereof by the Board of Governors of the State Bar of Georgia.

# APPLICATION

#### TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

#### STATE BAR OF GEORGIA

This is an application pursuant to Article XIV of the By-Laws of the State Bar of Georgia for the establishment of a Section of Antitrust Law.

The establishment of a Section of Antitrust Law will afford members of the State Bar of Georgia who are interested in antitrust law an opportunity to further the work of the State Bar in the development of antitrust law in Georgia. This field of law and practice has not been assigned to any existing section or committee of the State Bar.

A copy of the proposed By-Laws for the government of the Section of Antitrust Law is attached.

WHEREFORE, this application for the establishment of the Section of Antitrust Law is submitted by members of the State Bar who have signified their desire for the establishment of the Section and who intend to become members thereof.

| MEMBER                               | ADDRESS                                   |
|--------------------------------------|---|
| 1. albert W. Stubbs                  | P. D. Box 469, Columbus, Da               |
| 2. Ry M. Hanton M.                   | **  |
| 3. Lolan Thursday                    |   |
| 4. George B. Haley, Jr.              | 1045 Hurt Bldg. actouter                  |
| 5. Maller W fallon                   |   |
| 6. Stimbrough Taylor . J.            | 1045 Hurt Bldg., Atlanta                  |
| 8. Mily Jalungs                      | 1045 Hever Bldg Atlanta,                  |
| 8. holy Calenager                    | 434 Trust Co. of Ga. Blogg.               |
| 9. John Gjara<br>10. J. Lennel Hewes | 434 Trast Co. of Re Pelle                 |
| 10. D. Jennel Hewes                  | 434 TRUST CO. of Ga. Blog<br>Attenta, Da. |
|                                      | Missis                                    |